
          

 

 

ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JANUARY 21, 2019 
9:00 A.M. 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 

Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.arborwoodcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Amenity Center Community Room 
Somerset at the Plantation 

10401 Dartington Drive 
Fort Myers, Florida, 33913 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
January 21, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. November 12, 2018 Regular Board Meeting....................................................................................Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Street Lighting Project 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2019-01 – Adopting a Revised State Mutual Aid Agreement..................Page 7 

2. Consider Approval of Arborwood Preserve Phase 2B Plat...............................................................Page 40 

3. Discussion Regarding Brazilian Pepper Removal 

4. Discussion Regarding Somerset Fountains 

5. Discussion Regarding Somerset Effluent Water Issue 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financials.................................................................................................................................Page 51 

2. Engineer Report 

3. Field Inspectors Report 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



News-Press, The 
Jan. 10, 2019 
Miscellaneous Notices 

NOTICE OF MEETING ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT The 
Board of Supervisors of the Arborwood Community Development District will hold a 
Board Meeting on January 21, 2019, at 9:00 a.m. at the Amenity Center Community 
Room located at Somerset at The Plantation, 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, 
Florida 33913. The Board Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Florida law for community development districts. The 
meeting may be continued in progress without additional notice to a time, date, and 
location stated on the record. A copy of the agenda for the meeting may be obtained 
from the District's website or by contacting the District Manager, Special District 
Services, located at 27499 Riverview Center Blvd., #253, Bonita Springs, Florida 34134. 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone. 
Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations to participate in this Board Meeting is asked to advise the 
District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contacting the District 
Manager at (239) 444-5790. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the 
Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District 
Office. A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting with respect 
to any matter considered at the meeting is advised that person will need a record of the 
proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made including the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based. Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised 
notice. Kathleen Dailey District Manager Arborwood Community Development District 
www.arborwoodcdd.org AD# 3326083 

 

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 12, 2018 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The November 12, 2018, Regular Board Meeting of the Arborwood Community Development District 
was called to order at 9:03 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room at Somerset at the Plantation 
located at 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33913. 
 
Chairman Terry Hammond recognized the observance of Veterans’ Day. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the 
Fort Myers News-Press on October 10, 2018, as legally required.  
 
C. SEAT NEW BOARD MEMBERS 
 
 
D. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW BOARD MEMBER 
RESPONSIBILITIES & DUTIES 
 
Ms. Dailey administered the oath of office to Lawrence Carr, Gary Franz and John Hamilton.  She noted 
that their new terms become effective November 20, 2018. 
   
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in 
order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Terry Hammond  Present 
Vice Chairman John Hamilton (via phone) Present 
Supervisor Lawrence Carr Present 
Supervisor Joan Pattison  Present 
Supervisor Gary Franz  Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Dailey Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Wes Haber (via phone) Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
District Engineer Josh Evans  JR Evans Engineering 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Others present were:  Mike Myers of Passarella & Associates; Norm Trebilcock of Trebilcock & 
Associates; Troy Dinicola, Marina Bay Community Manager; and the following District residents: 
Denise Rafferty, Jerry Strohmenger, Roger Bosworth, Jack Aycock, Chris Anderson and Jeff Gordish 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
F. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 Chairman 
 

 Vice Chairman 
 

 Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 Assistant Secretaries 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Carr to keep the current slate of officers, to wit:  
Chairman Terry Hammond; Vice Chairman John Hamilton; Secretary/Treasurer Kathleen Dailey; and 
Assistant Secretaries Lawrence Carr, Joan Pattison and Gary Franz.  Upon being put to a vote, the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
G. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Franz stated that Item K-3 regarding the golf course could be removed from the agenda.  There was 
a consensus of the Board to remove the item. 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Gordish questioned the decision made at the last Board Meeting concerning residents planting in the 
pond maintenance easement and asked for clarification.  Ms. Dailey went over the Board’s previous 
discussion and Mr. Evans reiterated that planting was discouraged.  Mr. Hammond recapped that anyone 
wanting to plant should come before the Board.  Mr. Carr stated that if anyone does any planting, it will 
be at their own risk if it is necessary to remove.  Mr. Carr pointed out the Pulte had planted in the 
easement. Mr. Hammond opined that if Board approval is not required, there should be very clear that it 
is done at their own risk.  Mr. Haber added that the homeowner has the obligation to have the knowledge 
that the easement and restrictions exist and that they cannot do anything that interferes with the purpose 
of the easement or the District has the right to remove the infringement. Mr. Gordish stated that residents 
have to go through the ARB process.  Mr. Carr suggested that the ARB inform residents that any 
plantings would need to be removed at the homeowner’s expense.  Mr. Hammond reiterated same and 
suggested that it be communicated to the HOAs that any planting is done at the resident’s risk and must 
be removed at their expense if it interferes with the use of the easement. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Franz, seconded by Mr. Carr and passed unanimously reiterating that 
homeowners may not plant or put in improvements that adversely impact the stormwater system or the 
District’s ability to use the easement and if they do, they do so at their own risk and/or expense.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  September 17, 2018, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The September 17, 2018, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously approving the 
September 17, 2018, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

J. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Revised Agreement Regarding Sign Maintenance 
 
Mr. Haber went over the agreement and the changes.  Mr. Hammond asked about insurance and Mr. 
Haber indicated he felt comfortable pushing back requiring the District as an additional insured.  Mr. 
Franz asked if there had been a determination on the ownership of the signs.  Mr. Haber responded that 
there had not, but based on easement documents, the District is responsible for maintenance and removal.  
Mr. Hammond recommended approving the agreement, subject to the change in the insurance 
requirement and authorizing the Chairman to sign on behalf of the District.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Franz, seconded by Mr. Carr and passed unanimously approving the revised 
agreement regarding sign maintenance, subject to insurance requirements; and further authorizing the 
Chairman to execute said documents on behalf of the District. 
 
 2.  Consider Streetlight Project 
 
Mr. Hammond provided an update and overview on past Board discussions regarding a motion to 
complete the project, but deferring action on Marina Bay.  He recognized that several Marina Bay 
residents were in attendance at today’s meeting.  Mr. Trebilcock stated that including Marina Bay added 
ten additional lights and that the prepared plans, including Marina Bay, were ready to be submitted to 
the City for permitting. He added that the project could piggyback a County contract with AIS, who did 
the original project under the name of OnPower and who currently handles maintenance on the installed 
lights. 
 
Mrs. Pattison asked if the City had confirmed that they would take over maintenance.  Mr. Trebilcock 
responded that plans needed to be submitted and that confirmation should arrive at that time.  Mr. 
Trebilcock added that this confirmation does not include the lights in front of Marina Bay, which is in 
the County. 
 
Mr. Franz asked at what point Treeline would become an obligation of the County.  Mr. Trebilcock 
indicated Treeline would become an obligation of the County when the volume of traffic warrants 
establishment as an arterial roadway.  Mr. Hammond pointed out that there is no requirement to put in 
the lights and that the intent is to provide safety.  He added that Marina Bay did not exist when the 
lighting project was first contemplated, but it is consistent with the other parcels on Treeline to add them 
to the project.  Mr. Franz opined that with all the development on Treeline, he has no doubt that the 
threshold will be hit soon for the County to take over maintenance.  Mr. Evans stated that it is going to 
be awhile, as the trip count is only about one-half way there to what is required for the obligation to take 
over.   
 
Mr. Dinicola stated he was representing the Marina Bay HOA and presented a petition signed by 250 
homeowners requesting lighting in front of Marina Bay. He stated the concern was for safety and 
uniformity with the other streetlights.  He added that he understands the predicament with the City 
turnover and their portion being in the County and asked that the District not defer the Marina Bay 
portion.  Mr. Strohmenger stated that Marina Bay residents do pay fees to the CDD and asked, as a safety 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

factor along with the fact that every other community has lighting, that the section be included in the 
project.   
 
Mr. Hammond then passed the gavel to Vice Chairman Hamilton and made a motion to move forward 
with the project, including the ten lights for Marina Bay; further directing staff to move forward with 
permitting and obtaining a City agreement to accept maintenance, piggybacking the contract with AIS, 
and authorizing the Chairman to execute any documents, as deemed necessary.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Carr and passed unanimously.  
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Addition of Maintenance of the Golf Course Pond 
 
This item was withdrawn from the Agenda. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2018-10 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Amended Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2018-10 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 
2017/2018 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 
189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Dailey went over the amended budget. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Franz, seconded by Mrs. Pattison and passed unanimously to adopt 
Resolution No. 2018-10, as presented. 
 
 5.  Consider 2-Year Renewal Option of Auditor 
 
Ms. Dailey explained the renewal option.  Mr. Hamilton indicated there had been some problems with 
the audit, but he was okay with the agreement being renewed. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously approving the 2-
year renewal option with the auditor, Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank. 
 
L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 
Financials – Ms. Dailey went over the financial information and Mr. Hammond added that the District 
was in better shape than projected. 
 
Ms. Dailey indicated that the next meeting was scheduled for December 17, 2018.  Due to the holidays 
and no pressing matters, it was the consensus of the Board to cancel the December meeting. 
 
Ms. Dailey then advised that the next meeting would take place on January 21, 2019.   
 

Page 5



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 2.  Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Evans stated that he was in the process of getting the lakes turned over and the proper deeds prior to 
the turnover. 
 
Mr. Evans indicated that he would obtain a quote for the vacuuming of pipes, where necessary, in the 
most recent analysis.  He estimated a contract for doing such with Sewer Viewer would be about $15,000.  
It was the consensus of the Board to move forward with the project. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Report 
 
Mr. Hirniak gave an overview of the lake conditions and stated that they were improving in respect to 
algae, particularly near the 10th hole of the golf course. He added that residents may see floating and 
dead plant material due to treatments and that this was a normal process.  Mr. Hirniak advised that he 
had met with several residents over the past month to handle their concerns. 
 
Mr. Gordish noted that he and Mr. Hirniak had met with Clarke and that there was some concern that 
the ponds were being treated with chemicals that had restrictions for irrigation.  Mr. Hammond suggested 
revisiting with the contractors at some point at a future meeting. 
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member comments but Mr. Aycock thanked the Board for Mr. Evans’ assistance 
on the drainage issues in Marina Bay. 
 
Mr. Myers advised that the ACOE permit for the 8.5 acre wetland area in the Arborwood preserve had 
been received. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Carr, seconded 
by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 10:40 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 6



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE REVISED FLORIDA STATEWIDE 
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the State Emergency Management Act, Chapter 252, Florida Statutes, 

authorizes the state and its political subdivisions to develop and enter into mutual aid agreements 

for reciprocal emergency aid and assistance in case of emergencies too extensive to be dealt with 

unassisted; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Arborwood Community Development 

District (“District”) hereby approve an agreement with the State of Florida, Division of 

Emergency Management, concerning the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Emergency Management requires an 

independent special district to participate in the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement to be eligible 

for funds under Administrative Rule 27P-19, Base Funding for County Emergency Management 

Agencies and Municipal Competitive Grant and Loan Programs; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, THAT: 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 

Section 2. That execution of the attached revised Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement is 
hereby authorized, and the Agreement is hereby approved. 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 21 day of January, 2019. 
 

  
 ARBORWOOD 
  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ATTEST: FLORIDA 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



catastrophic major 

minor 

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



NOTE: On February 26, 2018, this Agreement was modified by the Division of Emergency Management. 

This document replaces the August 20, 2007 edition of the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement; however, 

any and all Agreements previously executed shall remain in full force and effect. Any local government, 

special district, or educational institution which has yet to execute this Agreement should use the 

February 26, 2018 edition for the purposes of becoming a signatory.

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



***PLEASE UPDATE AS ELECTIONS OR APPOINTMENTS OCCUR***

Page 30



.   

Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Allowable Costs.
  Appeals.

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20472

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



MATCH  LINE  - SHEET 4

Page 44



MATCH  LINE  - SHEET 3

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



PHASE 2B LAND USE TABLE

UNIT TYPE BLOCKS /
TRACTS

NUMBER
OF UNITS

92

LEGEND

CITY OF FORT MYERS LDC SECTION 118.5.3 - DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL USES

TYPICAL 4-PLEX  LAYOUT

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52


	Arborwood Community Development District - January 21, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	November 12, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2019-01 – Adopting a Revised State Mutual Aid Agreement
	Consider Approval of Arborwood Preserve Phase 2B Plat
	Financials




